
NOTICE OF OPEN MEETING OF THE SAN ANTONIO REGIONAL FLOOD PLANNING 
GROUP 

Region 12 San Antonio RFPG 
12/16/2021

 2:00 PM 

TAKE NOTICE that a meeting of the San Antonio Regional Flood Planning Group as established 
by   the Texas Water Development Board, will be held on Thursday, December 16, 
2021, at 2:00 PM, in-person at the San Antonio River Authority Board room, located at 
201 W. Sheridan St. and virtually on GotoMeeting at https://global.gotomeeting.com/
join/238516701. You may also dial into the meeting on your phone at +1 (312) 
757-3121, access code: 238-516-701 

Agenda: 1. (2:00 PM) Roll-Call

2. Public Comments – limit 3 minutes per person

3. Approval of the Minutes from the Previous San Antonio Regional Flood Planning
Group                  Meeting (Region 12)

4. Communications from the Texas Water Development Board (TWDB)

5. Chair Report

6. Updates from Region 12 Subcommittees

7. Discussion and Appropriate Action Regarding the Consultant's Work and Schedule

a. Task 4B - Identification and Evaluation of Potential FME's, FMS's, and FMP's

i. RFPG Action on Proposed Process

8. Regional Liaison Update

9. Public Comments - limit 3 minutes per person

10. Date and Potential Agenda Items for Next Meeting

11. Adjourn

If you wish to provide written comments prior to or after the meeting, please email your 
comments to khayes@sariverauthority.org or physically mail them to the attention of Kendall 
Hayes at San Antonio River Authority, 201 W. Sheridan, San Antonio, TX, 78204 and 
include “Region 12 San Antonio Flood Planning Group Meeting” in the subject line of the 
email. 

Additional information may be obtained from: Kendall Hayes (210) 302-3641, 
khayes@sariverauthority.org, San Antonio River Authority, 201 W. Sheridan, San Antonio, 
TX. 

https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/875885725


 
 

Meeting Minutes  
Region 12 San Antonio Regional Flood Planning Group Meeting 

Tuesday, November 16, 2021 
4:00 PM 

San Antonio River Authority 
 
Roll Call: 
Voting Member Interest Category Present (x) /Absent ( ) / 

Alternate Present (*) 
Brian Yanta Agricultural interests X 
David Wegmann Counties X 
Derek Boese River authorities X 
Doris Cooksey Electric generating utilities  
Deborah (Debbie) Reid Environmental interests X 
Nefi M. Garza Flood districts X 
Cara C. Tackett Industries  
Jeffrey Carroll Municipalities X 
John Paul Beasley Public X 
Suzanne B. Scott Nonprofit X 
Steve Gonzales Small business X 
David Mauk Water districts X 
Steve Clouse Water utilities  

 
Non-voting Member Agency Present(x)/Absent( )/ 

Alternate Present (*) 
Marty Kelly Texas Parks and Wildlife Department *Adam Whisenant 
James Guin Texas Division of Emergency Management  
Jami McCool Texas Department of Agriculture X 
Jarod Bowen Texas State Soil and Water Conservation 

Board 
 

Kris Robles General Land Office X 

Anita Machiavello Texas Water Development Board (TWDB) X 
Susan Roberts Texas Commission on Environmental 

Quality 
 

  
Quorum: 
Quorum: Yes 
Number of voting members or alternates representing voting members present: 10 
Number required for quorum per current voting positions of 12: 7 
 
 
 
 
 
All meeting materials are available for the public at: http://www.region12texas.org.   

https://www.region12texas.org/


AGENDA ITEM NO.1: ROLL CALL 
 
Ms. Kendall Hayes, San Antonio River Authority, called the role and confirmed a quorum.  
 
AGENDA ITEM NO.2: PUBLIC COMMENT – LIMIT 3 MINUTES PER PERSON 
 
Ms. Sadie Smeck, Sunset Commission, introduced herself, explained the role of the Sunset 
Commission, and invited members to participate in the evaluation.  
 
AGENDA ITEM NO.3: APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES FROM THE SEPTEMBER 21, 
2021, SAN ANTONIO REGIONAL FLOOD PLANNING GROUP MEETING (REGION 
12) 
 
Mr. Wegmann motioned to approve the minutes. Ms. Scott seconded the motion, motion passed.  
 
AGENDA ITEM NO.4: APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES FROM THE PREVIOUS SAN 
ANTONIO REGIONAL FLOOD PLANNING GROUP MEETING (REGION 12) 
 

Mr. Boese motioned to approve the minutes. Ms. Reid seconded the motion, motion passed.  

AGENDA ITEM NO.5: COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE TEXAS WATER 
DEVELOPMENT BOARD (TWDB) 
 
Ms. Machiavello provided an update. Tech Memo deliverable due on January 7th.  
 
AGENDA ITEM NO.6: CHAIR REPORT 
 
Chair Garza provided an update on the City of San Antonio’s active Bond review process. He 
encouraged members to participate in the next meeting on December 1st.  
 
AGENDA ITEM NO.7: UPDATES FROM REGION 12 SUBCOMMITTEES 
 
Mr. Boese provided an update on the Technical Subcommittee. He will serve as Chair. Debbie 
was nominated as vice chair. Steve Clouse was nominated as secretary. The committee discussed 
the guiding principles and legislation.  
 
Ms. Scott provided an update on the Outreach Subcommittee. The committee discussed the goals 
as well.  
 
AGENDA ITEM NO.8: DISCUSSION REGARDING THE CONSULTANT’S WORK 
AND SCHEDULE 
 
Mr. Ron Branyon, HDR, provided an update on the current efforts of the consulting team, with a 
focus on Tasks 3A and 3B. HDR’s presentation and the recording for this meeting can be found 
on the Region 12 website at http://www.region12texas.org.   
 

https://www.region12texas.org/


Mr. Boese motioned to approve the goals stated in Task 3B as amended by the committee today. 
Ms. Scott seconded the motion, motion passed. 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO.9: NEGOTIATE AND EXECUTE RFP CONTRACT 
AMENDMENTS 
 
Mr. Wegmann motioned to authorize the planning group sponsor to negotiate and execute an 
amendment to the Regional Flood Planning Group Grant Contract with the TWDB to incorporate 
additional funding for the first cycle regional flood planning, including necessary revisions to the 
contract scope of work and budget. Mr. Beasley seconded the motion, motion passed.  
 
Mr. Wegmann motioned to authorize the planning group sponsor to negotiate and execute an 
amendment to the Regional Flood Planning Group Grant Contract with the technical consultant 
to incorporate additional funding for the first cycle regional flood planning, including necessary 
revisions to the contract scope of work and budget. Ms. Reid seconded the motion, motion 
passed.  
 
AGENDA ITEM NO.10: PRESENTATION BY PLANNING GROUP SPONSOR ON 
CURRENT BUDGET EXPENSES TO DATE 
 
Ms. Hayes provided an update to the planning group. There have been no invoices to this date. 
The technical consultant will be invoicing the River Authority in the coming weeks.   
 
AGENDA ITEM NO.11: REGIONAL LIAISON UPDATES  
 
Mr. Mauk provided an update on Region 13. They have been actively working in their 
subcommittees. He will decimate information from their technical subcommittee to the Region 
12 planning group.  
 
AGENDA ITEM NO. 12: PUBLIC COMMENTS: 
 
Ms. Mary Johnson provided a public comment. She brought attention to San Antonio’s inner city 
flooding issues within several neighborhoods.   
 
AGENDA ITEM NO. 13: POTENTIAL DATE AND AGENDA ITEMS FOR NEXT 
MEETING  
 
Next planning group meeting date is December 16, 2021, at 2:00 PM. The technical consultants 
will present Task 4A and 4B. The January meeting will be January 4, 2022, at 10:00 AM.  
 
AGENDA ITEM NO. 14: ADJOURN 
 
Mr. Boese motioned to adjourn. Ms. Reid seconded the motion, the motion passed. Meeting 
adjourned at 5:49 PM.    



SARFPG 
Meeting

D e c e m b e r  1 6 ,  2 0 2 1



Agenda

• Schedule

• Outreach Update

• Task 4 Discussion 



Critical Path Schedule
Task 3B – Goals Approval – November Meeting - 11/16/2021

Task 4B – Approve Methodology – December 16th RPG Meeting

Review Draft Memo – Provide to RFPG by e-mail Dec 17th – Comments due 
12/31/2021

Approve Draft Memo –January 4th RFPG Meeting

Technical Memo Due to TWDB – January 7, 2022



Outreach Update

• December 9th Public and Stakeholder Meeting – Bandera, TX

• January 11th Public Meeting – St. Hedwig, TX



Task 4A Flood Mitigation Needs Analysis

• Flood Needs Analysis Based On:
• Flood prone areas identified in Task 2A/2B

• Task 2A/2B Quick Status Update
• Areas that don’t have inundations maps
• Areas with emergency need
• Documented historic flooding



Task 4B – Identification and Evaluation of Potential Flood 
Management Evaluations, Strategies and Projects

What is an FMP, FME and FMS?
FMP – Flood Mitigation Project 

Structural - Bridges, culverts, storm drain, regional detention, nature-based projects
Non-structural – Property or easement acquisition, flood warning system, flood proofing

FME – Flood Mitigation Evaluation  
H&H Modeling, Flood Mapping Updates, Flood studies

FMS – Flood Mitigation Strategy
Proposed plan to mitigate flood hazard

Floodplain Managers Toolbox 



• Step 1: FMP, FME, FMS Initial Screening
• Related to a floodplain management goal
• Meets emergency need
• Drainage area of 1 square mile or greater
• Reduces risk for the 100-year (1% annual chance) flood

• Exemptions for critical facilities, transportation routes, other

Task 4B – Identification and Evaluation of Potential Flood 
Management Evaluations, Strategies and Projects



• Step 2-1: FMP Screening – Flow Chart
• No negative effect – Section 3.6 Technical Guidelines
• Sufficient Data – Section 3.9 Technical Guidelines

Task 4B – Identification and Evaluation of Potential Flood 
Management Evaluations, Strategies and Projects



• Step 2-2: FME Screening
• Planning-level cost estimate
• Willing sponsor
• Identify structures, population, critical facilities, roadways, agricultural lands 

that are at risk in the study area

Task 4B – Identification and Evaluation of Potential Flood 
Management Evaluations, Strategies and Projects



• Step 2-3: FMS Screening
• Planning-level cost estimate
• Willing sponsor
• Quantifies the estimated flood risk being addressed and potential level of 

flood reduction 

Task 4B – Identification and Evaluation of Potential Flood 
Management Evaluations, Strategies and Projects



• Step 3: Tie FMPs, FMEs, FMSs to Goals developed in Task 3B

• Step 4: Detailed Evaluations of FMPs, FMEs, FMSs
• Benefit-Cost Ration greater than 1.0
• Willing sponsor verified
• No known insurmountable constraints or hurdles

• Step 5: Final Recommendation
• Public Comment

Task 4B – Identification and Evaluation of Potential Flood 
Management Evaluations, Strategies and Projects



Any Questions
Contact info: Ron Branyon

Email: Ronald.branyon@hdrinc.com
Phone: 210.912.7105



�����������	
�����������
���
�������
������������������������������� � �������� !�"#$%&'()*)+),*-,(-*'./+)0'-)12/3+-.4)5'6)*'7-8�
��
9���
:
������
�������
�;�������������
�������
�������������������<�
��
����
�������
������
�����������
=�>����
�;�����
�
�:��
��������
�
:
��������
������������������
���
���?
�@���
�����
�����������
A���
�;����:������������
�<������
���
��
���
�����B������
��������
����
���������
�����������
�����
���?
�@���
��
���@���
��������
�����
�����	
���C�
�����
��D=�D�E�F����E�F=�����������@A���
�	CG;����
��������
���
������������H
���?
����
������:
�A�I�������
�
���������J�
��
�����K��������
��������
��@A�
���
�������
:������<����
:������
�������
�����B
��=�	�
������:@���������������������:��
��
�������?
�������
�����������?��
�����	CG;�	
�����������
���
�=L� ��	��� D�=��=��
�����M��������I�
���?
�
��
��L����I�
���?
�@���
��L��
������
�:����::���@���
��:����������������������
�������A������������
�����:
�����
����
��
�:A�IH
���?
�>:���L����:

����
����
�������
9���
:
���������
�	
���C�
�����
����	CG;����
�=��>���
?
���������
�
�����
���
�A���
�	CG;��������?
@��
����:
�����?������
�����
��������	
������<�����
@�������
��������������
�I����
���?
��:���L=�;�
�������
��
�����
�A��
�
���A��������
�������
����

�����
��
��
��
���
������<���������:�������::��M
����:
�
�:��
�����:���:�:����:����������
�����
������������
�����������
���?
��:���������
���
�@��
������
���@�
�����
�����	
��=����������������
�������@��K
�������
�9�
��������
A���
���
�����������������
�������
�������������
J��:
�������E�GF�����<�J��:
�������E�GF���@���=�N�@�B������������������������
���@��?
��
���������������������
�����������
���?
��:���=�	�
����
��
��<�
�����
����
�B�������������������������?
��
��������A�����������
�����������O���:���:�:��������P����:���:�:=��QRSTUVWXYVZ[V\U]R̂_̀UV_abRĉVdbUc_e_cR̂_[\fVRTgURhiVjfUhVSiVU\̂_̂_UfV_\VQUkRfVe[gV̂lUVXmmniURgVeT[[hVoURfjgUaU\̂V o_\_ajaVV o[f̂Vd̂g_\]U\̂VC�
��p����
���
?�����q���G����@����� N��:�:�>���
�
����C�
���p����
���
?�����r��=�����������:�������������J�
������� N��:�:�>���
�
����C�
���p����
���
?�����r��=���

������:�������������J�
�������C�
��p����
���
?�����q���G����@���� N��:�:�>���
�
����C�
���p����
���
?�����r��=!��

����������:���������
���� N��:�:�>���
�
����C�
���p����
���
?�����r��=���

����������:���������
����G������
� G������
�����
�
���
����<
�������������
�<�
�������
�
�
?���������
�
���
������
��

���=���

��N��:�:�>���
�
�����G������
�r��=���������

�s��
�����E���F�t
�����@� t
�����@�����
�
���
����<
�������������
�<�
�������
�
�
?���������
�
���
������
��

���=���

��N��:�:�>���
�
�����t
�����@�r��=����s�
�����E���F�t��
@�p����
�s��������t���:
� ������?���:
�����
���
����<
�������������
�<�
�������
�
�
?���������
�
���
������
��

���=���

�� u�������t��
@�p����
�s�������t���:
�r��=��H�	�8������������G
?
���:
����
�������
�G�<����
:�����?
@��
�s������@� N��������
��

����<����
:����?
@��
���������@� G�<����
:����?
@��
���������@�:�����?
��=���

�������

�������������
����
����<��������:������
��@��
:���v���������������:����A���
��
��������
��<����?��
��
��::
��
��������
�����������
���
���
����
����������
���?
��:��������:

����
��������@��
9���
:
�������wxyz{|y}~�{��}��|���}�{|�|y}�~��z��y~|��}�������������@�����
������������������������:������������B
���=�



�����������	
�����������
���
�������
������������������������������� � � ����!�!��"#$#%& '()*+*,*-+.������
���/���
���������������0��
������ ����1��
����������2���
�  
������
��34567638649:;<=;65>?@AB6CD889?D@EF6G@F@H;>;FBI���
�J���J�J�K������������L������
������J�MK�L�N��
O���
J
�����������I�P2
�
��
����
��������
� �� ��
��������������
� ����J���������
�
�����/������������
����������������Q�M��������������0��
������ ����1��
��I�!���NR�L���������
�2������
��������/��
O���
J
���������
���������������������
���S
�/���
�����
�����������
I���
��
��JJ
��
���
������������K��K
���S
�LJ �������������2�R�TUVTWXYZ[\WV]̂_ỲZ�J
�������� ��a
���2������������
�
����������b���������������� �� 
���
�R�c������
���S����
���I���
�����
�
�������������b�J�����
�J
���
���/���
��� 
��
������������
�
S
���2�
�������
�
�
S�������� 
b��������
R�L������
��JJ
��
������������
����2�
�������
�
�
S���������������
���������
� 
�J������
����������
���/����
��
���J�����
�S���
��������� ��S
� �� ��
�� ��a
���������������
�
O����������
���������
�
������������������R�������
� �� ��
����������� �������
�����I���
�
�J����������dUVdWXYZ[\WV[̂_ỲZ�����
�
�������
���������J2�
����
����������
�
��������������������������
���������
���
����������JJ
��������������������������
�R�����������/I���������
������2�����
O���
J
������������
�J
�����
��������dUVdWXYZ[\WV[̂_ỲZI���  �����
���Re0���J2�
����
����������
�
���������������
���
/������
� �����������f��f2/I� ��a
��� �� 
��/I����
�
J
��R�!Re0���J2�
����
����������
�
������������������J������
��
�2��b�I�����
��I�������2/���
/�����
������ ���/R���Re1��J�J�����
�
�����g�h�
��0����
���
S�����J��������������R���

��Mi��R����N�J
���
���������
��/������������f�
�����R�jRe1��J�J�����
�
����!g�h�
��0����
���
S������J��������������R���

��Mi��R����N�J
���
����
�����J ���������
��R��Re1��J�J�����
�
�����/��������� 
b��������
�J�����
�i��R�� 
��
���J
���
������J �����������
��M���f�����I�a��������I��
��
�I��
�
�S����I�
��RNR�	�����������
��
������������
������  �/�����!g��S
�������/���R�	�
��������S
���
�������/����������
�������
 �����������k�
���S
��J ��l������
O���
J
��������������������
����S
���
�����
����

�l�� ���
�������a���
J
��������/������S
���/���
��
����b
����
����
������J
�������
 ����
��J ���R�	������������
�2
��f����J
��
������������
�����������
�
����
��
����R���
�������/��
��������
���S
��J ����
J�������a
������	hgm��
S�
2R�	�
�������J����������
����J����S
��
���S
��J �������J���� �
� ��a
���������
 ������/��
���S
��J ��R�	�
�����
���S
��J ����
���
���
�
����������
� �� ��
���������� ������R�	������
�������S
��/��
������/��J �������
����������/���1�I������������
���
������/��
O���
J
������
������
�  ����J�
�����
���� ������R�	�
�S��
�������
����
���S
��
��
���������
�������
����f/
�������I���������� �������
��������
��
�
���/������
�������
����f/
����
��J
������J��������R�n�2
S
�I����
����
�k����
���S
��J ��l����
������J���
O�
���
����/o
�����������
� ������� ���
����������������
�
������
�J��J�J����
���
������
����S
R�L��������
�����������J��
���������
����J �������
� ��������
S
��J/�����
O�
���/����
����J���� �
��
S���������� 
������J���������������� ���

���������� �
��J���/��
����I�������
����I����
S
��������������R�����/������
�
������
����
����
�J��
������
������J/���
�
�J��
�����
����J ��� ��
������������
���������������
�����I���������
�J����
���
J
���
��



�����������	
�����������
���
�������
������������������������������� � �������� !��
��������
�"���"����
#�����$�������
�
������
���
����
����%
����������������������������
���
��
����
���������
����&��������
�������������$�
������
�������
�����
��
�����
�
�������'������
��'
��������
����������
#
����������
����
�������������
����
����������
�����
���
��
������������'���&�()*)+, -./012304056787319:1;58723���
����

�<���
������������������
���#
��'��������
=���
�&�>����������
��''
��
��������
������������
����

������
������������������
�����������������
������"����������&��&?@
���������������
����$����A�B�
���������������
���$�����������
�������
�C��
��������C�������
��''
��������C
'�����'&��&?@
���������������
�������
��>'���#
'
����A�>���������'������
�����������������
�����%
��������D�����
���'���
���&� &?>'����������
�������
��>'���#
'
����A�>�����������
���������������
���������������������'��������������
����#
����$�������
#���
��'����&�E&?@
�������������C���������C
���
��A�>����������������D���
��=�����$������
�
���������������������������F�����
�����������
�������
���������������������F&�!&?G��G
���#
�>'�����
�����������()*)H, I828J028K43.:07LM:73C���������'
���
����������������������'��
���
�������
�
�����N������
�
�
'
���������������"$��=���������'$��
������O
�������
#��
��
���#
��'���&����%
����"�����
������
#
��'���������'
���
��'$��
�������
�������
��
���������������������������
������O
�������
�����
����������'������
�PG��G
���#
�>'���<��
=���
'
������������������������
�
�������������%
��&�����
�'��
N�����������
���C������&�Q�������
�
�����@�R�
��B����
���
#�����SRB�T���������
��
������������
�����'�
#
��������
�����
����
�������
���������N��
����#���'
������
�������
�
�����������"����������������$�����������$�
���������"����
�����
�
����RB��"�����
��
���
������&�����"������
������������������
�������
�
�����N���
����%
�������
�������
�����C�&��� �



�����������	
�����������
���
�������
������������������������������� � ������ ! ��"#$%&'()*+,-.*,/012-	
���3�
�����
�4
�������56!5���
7���
����
����
��������������������
�8�����
9��
:���;
���������������������������
�������������������<������������=
�����������
��
���
�
���>��������
�����������
������������
��������
��>?@�A����
���������������B
��
����
��������<����������������������>��
:���������
����
�����
B
�������;6�C�9
B
�:�����
���
����9��������
���D
��6�A�����
�����������������
:���
�
����E�����E�����������
6�	�
�������<������������=
������
�����
������
��<<
��
���>�
��������9�����
�������
�����	
��F��������
B
��4��
�������������������
���;
������6�A�����
�����
���
���
���;�����������
��<<
��
�����=
�������������
�����:���
�������9�������B��
����=
�����
���������
������=
�����
�����
�6�	�
���
����������
�����
�������
����9
��������
�����;��������
�������
���
�������
����
���;����9�����
��
�
�<��
�����������
�4��
������������������
�B���������
�������
���9����������������6�GHIJKLMNOPMQLIHRSTUMVMWXTXLMGURRYMZUTSSHSIM[RSI\QTSILMZUTSSHSIMZKR]L̂ M̂ �	�
����������
��9����
����
��<<
��
��������<������������=
���<�����
����B��
���>���
������������
�	3_̀:��������������6a�
�
������=
���_���
7���
�b���� 6ac��
������������
�������
������;�������=
���������
����
�����������d����
��
�
�<��
����
��������������
��������;��������
���
���
�
��
������������
�������������������
�����
����;
����
�������e6�	�
����
����������������9����������
�����
7���
�����=
�������������
��
�f��
����������
����
��������
�������������������<
��6�g������<��
����������
����
�����������:���
����
���

�����������
���A4����
���
7���
��9�����
����B��
�������
�	3_̀�������
�����
�����
B
���������
������
���;
�������������
�4��6�����
�;��������������=
�������
7���
�������<��
�
���
�
�
�������������B��
��������
����� 6��"#$#h% i*j*'/1-k'()*+,-./,/--�
�
������=
���_��9�����

������
����B��
������
������=
���������������
����=
���E<
:��
����:����=
���	>�
:�̀��:�����<�
������:�������
���������
�����4
��������6l6̀�����6l6��������������<
��6��	���
B
����������
���;
�������������
�4��
����������:���
�	3_̀�<��������
�������>�9����������;����=
������������
����
6�	�
����
�������>�
B
�������;�����������
��
�����
�4��
��������������<�>�



�����������	
�����������
���
�������
������������������������������� � �������� ����!
���"
��������
�����������������������
��������
��#���$���
��������%%���������������
���#�$��
����
�������!
����#�
��������!
����
������
�&��	�
������$���������������
���������%#��
���
���#���
�	'()������
����!
�����*��������
��&�+������������
�������������
�������*��������
���$�����
��
"
���
���#���
�	'()������
"�
$������%%
����#�	'()���*
����
��&��&,-./.012345./.647480.7809:.;24</.0=>.4?.@2A49B4C699D1E>4FGHH73.=0IJ���������������
"
���#���
�������
���
���
K��
L���!
���"
��
����L#
���������
���&��&,-./.012345./.6474M9NNOE1234P..D4FQ489@O6=219EIJ4��������������
"
���#���
��������%%����#R���

���#��
��
���
�������!
�����%%����#���
��
���#����������&� &,C699D4S1TU4S.DO;219EJ���������������
���
�����������*��#��
��
���
������������
���
%�"
�����%���
����L#
�������������������L���!
������������&�V&,C699D4?=N=>.4S.DO;219EJ4����������������������*��
��������W����
��#�����
�����X��#���
��
���
�������L#
���%�
��
�����������������&��&,M0121;=64C=;16121.T4?=N=>.4S.DO;219EJ4��������������
���
�����������*��#��
��
���
�������������������
���
%�"
�����%���
����L#
�������������������L���!
������������&�Y&,51B.4=ED4-=B.234FZE:O03[59TT49B461B.IJ�����������������
K��!��#����*��
��
���
�������
���%�
������
��\��������]��
�"���
������#������]�������������������������
���!��#�����������!
��&�&̂,_=2.04-O@@634̀.E.B12J������������������!
��R�����
�����������
���$�
�������#��
�
������������
�����������#��

����
�����
�������
�%�����
�
���#�����"
�����
�����
������$�
�����&�a&,-9;1=64bO6E.0=c16123J���
�������
��
��
������(��
�
���������de+��������	
��]��#�������������"
��
����!
���de+��#��
�������������������#������
�"���
������#��
"
�&�f&,P=2O0.7̀=T.D4-96O219EJ�+��������������
��
��
���
�������!
������������g�����
��������
���
�����
����
���#�����&����&,hO621@6.4̀.E.B12J������������������������]�%
�����
]�
��
��
���
�
����������
��
����]����������
]�������������]����������g����#�������
]������
����%����%����]�%

����������������#�����]���K������!
����
����
��
�����&���&,i@.0=219ET4=ED4h=1E2.E=E;.J�+������������
��
��
���
"
�����jkl��

��������������������"��
�&���&,<DN1E1T20=21/.m4S.>O6=2903m4=ED492A.041N@6.N.E2=219E49cT2=;6.T[D1BB1;O623J�����������������!
�����%����������K����
g���
%
��������
�%������%��������"
]��
������#]�������
���%��
%
�������������
�&�� &,nE/109EN.E2=64̀.E.B12J�+������������
��
��
���
"
�����
�"����%
�����
�
���������
��
��"
�
���#����!
������������������
�����
�]�$�
��g����#]����������
����
]������]����g����#]��������
�����
�]���������K
�����������
��%
������&��V&,nE/109EN.E2=64ZN@=;2J��������������
��
��
���
"
������"
��
�
�"����%
�����%�������
�������!
�����
������$�
��g����#]����������
����
]������]����g����#]��������
�����
�����
�����]�������������
�����
�]����
�����������
��%
������&���&,h9c16123J�+���������������!
����%���"
%
����������
���������%������#��������������
"
���]�$�������������
%���������
%
��
��#��
�"��
���
������%!�����
�������
�&��� ����	
���'�
�����
�d
�������Y&�Y��



�����������	
�����������
���
�������
������������������������������� � ������ ! ��"#$#%& '()(*+,-.*/0(12-3+2+-*(456*(3-	�
������7������������������
����
��
�
������8
���9���
:���
������
������8
���������;��
���
��
�
�����<������������=������

�
������������
�����>�?@ABCDEFGDHCICJ@BDKJLMCNODP@O@DJCQRSJCPDHCICJ@BDKJLMCNODP@O@DJCQRSJCPDTJLMCNODUVGDD �W��X9�TJLMCNODVCYNJSKOSLIGDD Z��
�����8
���9
����������[BLLPD\C]SLIGD 	̂ 9Z�������
������TJLMCNOD?_KCGDD ���8
���	̀�
���
�����a
�������> �������������=
���TJLMCNODb@OCJYcCPGDD ���8
���̂�
���
���\RJ@BDTJLMCNOGDD ���8
���:�����
�������������8
����
��	̂ 9Z��
�����������TJLMCNODdLYOGDD 	��������=�
�����8
��������eCICfSOgDdLYOD\@OSLGDD Z���;��
��
�
�=��
����������=������̀����TJLMCNODhO@ORYGDD �������i���
��=���̀i�����i�Z��j�
�̀�TLKRB@OSLIDhCJkCPGDD l�����������7���������8
���a
�;��
���
�Z�����̀��dLmmRISOSCYDhCJkCPDA_DTJLMCNOGDD n�=�
�����8�������������o����
�p�7���������8
����
�;��
��
�qDhOJRNORJCYDSIDrssg_C@JDtruD@IIR@BDNc@INCvD[BLLPKB@SIGD ��
j���8
����!!j̀
����������
��������qDhOJRNORJCYDwSOcDJCPRNCPDrssg_C@JDtruD@IIR@BDNc@INCvD[BLLPDJSYxGD ����j���8
����!!j̀
�����������<��
��������qDhOJRNORJCYDwSOcDJCmLkCPDfJLmDrssg_C@JDtruD@IIR@BDNc@INCvD[BLLPKB@SIGD ����j���8
����!!j̀
����������
���������
=�;
�����=�����������
��
����dLYOyDhOJRNORJCDJCmLkCPGD ���8
�������zl���������
���
=�;
��HUhDhc@KCfSBCDfLJDKJLMCNOGDD �Xa����
���
�������8
����
�;��
��
���=���������������TCJNCIO@]CD{@ORJCgA@YCPDhLBROSLIDtA_DNLYOvD �
��
���
���������n���
�Z�
�����������b@OCJDhRKKB_DeCICfSOD |
�zn�}�X��|
�i����;��
�������|�
���������
j�

��TJCgTJLMCNOD~CkCBgLfghCJkSNCD ��
j���8
�����a�� j̀
�����������!!j̀
��o�!�����j������p�TLYOgTJLMCNOD~CkCBgLfghCJkSNCD ����j���8
�����a�� j̀
�����������!!j̀
��o�!�����j������p�?J@ffSNDdLRIODfLJD~LwDb@OCJDdJLYYSI]YD 	������������o��9	p�������7�7�
��������������8
�����"#$#�& �*/./�(3-�*/0(12-�1/*6)�-'563(,6)(��-�+2+-�(456*(3�-+)3-�..*/+1�-�)�2*5126/)�-	�
������7����������������;��
�������
��������������
���
���������
:���
=
��������
���	̂ 9Z���<��������
��i���7
�����������������������������
;
������
�;��
���
:���
��������
���<��������>����������
�����������̀��
=�7��������
���
�7

��!j�!��;
��

������
�����
��������
��������
��>�̂�����������������������
��==
��
���������̀���
���
����
������
���
���
�����
����
���8
���;��̀>���7
;
�i��������
������
����������
���������=
����8
����=̀��
���������
���
���������������
�7

���7������
��
����������>�X�������������
i��������;��
��������
���7
������
��
��
�
��
�>��



�����������	
�����������
���
�������
������������������������������� � �������� !�"#$#%#&' ()*)+,-./0)*)01/2+)32+45)6-/7*)+78)/9)2-:/4;/;0449,<8/=&>>3.)7+?/@ABCDEFGHEIJKLDJKAMENODPKQKPERALAEJDSTKJDREAURECDVDCEWTKRDCKUDNEIJKLDJKAE XDVDJKLYHEZJD[ZJ\]DPLÊVDJAWDE_DOL̀E\QEaC\\RKUWEbcdd[YDAJeE_ALAEfDSTKJDgDULNE hi ZJD[OJ\]DPLEcdd[YDAJEQC\\ROCAKUEǸAODQKCDEjKL̀EDCDVALK\UNkEhi XLJTPLTJDEǸAODQKCDkEhi QKJNLEQC\\JENLJTPLTJDEDCDVALK\UNkEEhi NLJDAgBDREDCDVALK\UNkEEhi ZJ\]DPLEǸAODQKCDEKUElmXkEEhi CAUREDCDVALK\UNEbnK_̂fE\JE_opekEEhi @JAQQKPEI\TULEb̂ _̂@eEQ\JEC\jEjALDJEPJ\NNKUWNkEZJ\O\NDREXP\JKUWElTKRDCKUDNHE ZJ\O\NDRENP\JDEb\TLE\QEcdeHEBANDCKUDEAVDJAWDEQC\\RERDOL̀EqErstQLE cdEBANDCKUDEAVDJAWDEQC\\RERDOL̀EqEFQLE uEBANDCKUDEAVDJAWDEQC\\RERDOL̀EqEcQLE vEBANDCKUDEAVDJAWDEQC\\RERDOL̀EqEdstQLE GEBANDCKUDEAVDJAWDEQC\\RERDOL̀EwEdstQLE FEU\LEAVAKCABCDEbCDAVDEBCAUxeE dEyzz{|}~���|{��|���|���}��{�~{|������z{|��~������i	���
�
����
���
���
�����
�����
��
��
������������
�����������������
���
�������������������
�������������������������
�������i��
���
���
�����
��������
�������������������������������
���������������
����
��
��
�����������������
����������������
�
�������i����
������
���
�����i����
�
����������������������
��������������������������
�
��������������������i��������
����
���
���

��
��������i	�����������
���������������������
�������������������������
�
�����
����
�����������������������
���	�������
��������
���
������
������
�����
������
����������
�	��������������������� ��������
�����������
�����������������������
�����
��
�
�������
���������
�����������
������
�������
���������������������
�
�
������������
�
��
��
��
�
������
�����������
�������
�i���������������
�
��������
����������
������
���������
�����
���
���
�����
������
������
�����������
�����������¡�������������
��������¡�����¢�����£�£�����������i���������������
�
��������
�������
�����
�����
�
���������
��������
���������
��������!��������
���
������
������i��
�������
��
�������
�����������
����������
���
��
��
�����������
����������
�����
������i�
�������
����
������
��
��
�����������
����������
�����
����������
���
���
�����������������yzz{|}~���|{��|���}��{�~{|������z{|��~������i����������
������
���
���
�����
��������
����������������
��
��
�
����������
����������
�
���������i�
�
��
�����
���
����� ������������
����������
�������
�������������������� �i���������
�����
���
�������
���
���
��
�
�����������
����
��
��
�
���������
���������
���
�����
�
��
��������
��
�
������
�����������
����������
�����������
�����
����
�
���
����
��
��
�
���������������������
����
���
�����
�
����������
���



�����������	
�����������
���
�������
������������������������������� � ������ ! ��"#�
�������
�$��
������
�$
��
�����������
����%��������
�����
���
������
����&
����������
���
���
���'����������'"�()*)+),- ./0/123456/0/67589::;<2345<//=5>?@ABCDEFCGBHBIJKLCABHBAFCMNOOPQJKLCQBBRCSIJKBIJ?C GBHBIJKLTSNOOPQJKLCQBBRCUVCWNXPA?KJNQYCZ?K?C[B\PJIBOBQK]C #̂ XNXPA?KJNQCN_CMNOOPQJKLC̀JKaJQC_ANNRXA?JQC�#̂ WIBTXINbBMKCcddTLB?IC_ANNRXA?JQ�#̂ KNK?ACXNXPA?KJNQCN_CMNOOPQJKLC�WINXN]BRCGMNIJQeCfPJRBAJQB]FC WINXN]BRC]MNIBCUNPKCN_CcdYFCghEVCN_CXINbBMKCMNOOPQJKLC?__BMKBRC cdCEdVThEVCN_CXINbBMKCMNOOPQJKLC?__BMKBRC hCDEVTEdVCN_CXINbBMKCMNOOPQJKLC?__BMKBRC iCjDEVCN_CXINbBMKCMNOOPQJKLC?__BMKBRC cCQNKC?H?JA?@ABCUAB?HBC@A?QkYC dClmmnopqrst�"#	������
���'������
�������
���u�
������
����������������
������������
���$
������
���������������������uu����'"�� "#	�
���uu����'�%�����
��
���
������
�&������������v���'w������'w�
��"x"�y����u���������������������
����������������������������$����
����u���
�	
���z
u���������
��
��v������{{�
u��������"�
��"��${z�{	����{����u�
�{xw�������u���
�|���
��}��
���
�����~��
��v������{{%%%"�
����"��${�
������
�{u���������
�"���"��u�x��"#���
���u�
������
�����������%��������
���������������
�u�
�����y}���
�������
�����������������������
��%��������
����������������
���
�������}���|}��������������"�}

��
�������"�������
�������������������������������������}���|}��v������{{������"����"��${x"�	�
�u��u�u������
��'��u
�����������u
��������������������
�
����
����������������
����������"��"#������
���
��
��
���
������
���uu����'���
��
�w��
�������
�$��
w��������
���
���
���'����������'���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� �����()*)+)(- �699=512��51/=;8329<5>?@ABCD�FC�ANNRCIJ]kCIBRPMKJNQCSIJKBIJ?C �ANNRC[J]kC[BRPMKJNQCZ?K?C[B\PJIBOBQK]C #̂ XIBTXINbBMKCcddTLB?IC_ANNRXA?JQC]a?XB_JABC̀JKaCBABH?KJNQ]��#̂ XN]KTXINbBMKCcddTLB?IC_ANNRXA?JQC]a?XB_JABC̀JKaCBABH?KJNQ]��#̂ �C]KIPMKPIB]CJQCXIBTXINbBMKCcddTLB?IC_ANNRXA?JQ��#̂ �C]KIPMKPIB]CJQCXN]KTXINbBMKC_ANNRXA?JQ��#̂ ]KIPMKPIBC]a?XB_JAB��#̂ A?QRCBABH?KJNQ]CU�JZ [Y�WINXN]BRCGMNIJQeCfPJRBAJQB]C WINXN]BRC]MNIBCUNPKCN_CcdYFC[BRPMBRCIJ]kCKNCghEVCN_C]KIPMKPIB]CJQC_ANNRXA?JQC cdC[BRPMBRCIJ]kCKNCjhEVCN_C]KIPMKPIB]CJQC_ANNRXA?JQC hC[BRPMBRCIJ]kCKNCjEdVCN_C]KIPMKPIB]CJQC_ANNRXA?JQC iC[BRPMBRCIJ]kCKNCjcdVCN_C]KIPMKPIB]CJQC_ANNRXA?JQC cC



�����������	
�����������
���
�������
������������������������������� � �������� !�"#$%&#$'()*+',-'.'*,(%&,%(#*')/'01--$213)/' .'/-,'343)1351#'61#34#'513/+7' .'899:;<=>?@�AB	������
���C�D�������C��
��
�
E������������
�������
����������������F
����D������
���
����G������������
��D��������
����������A��������F
����D�������������
���
����������H�����
�I��
���D�D�
��������������F
���H���
�	JKL�IC�
�
�������
I�E
���
���C����I���
����������C��
I������
�D
����
�����������
A��AB�����������������
���������������
����������
���������
�A�� ABM���MNH��E
��C���
���
���
O���F
������OC
���������������
���
�D��������O���F
������OC
���������������
���
H������D������
���������
����
��P���
���
QH��������
�
E�����A��RAB������
���
��
��
���
������������
���
I�E
�����I����OC
�����������H��
�������
�E��
H��������
����������C��S��
I�E
��T�UVWXYZ[\Y[Z]XWZ]̂ _̀]aWbZ_̂ Wbc__adcefghVWXYZ[\Y[Z]XWfgWbc__adcefgWdZ]WdZ_i]\Yjkll�mnonpnqr stuuvwvxyxz{w|{v}~��u�w�351#'���'�1--$'$3�3�#'(#$%&,)-/'�(),#()3' �1--$'�3�3�#'"#$%&,)-/'6�(-2#(,�'�(-,#&,)-/7'�3,3'"#�%)(#�#/,*' �B 2(#�2(-�#&,'34#(3�#'$#2,�'-0'�..��#3('01--$)/�'60(-�'���.�����7���B 2-*,�2(-�#&,'�..��#3('01--$'*�32#0)1#�'#1#43,)-/*�'-('34#(3�#'$#2,��(#$%&,)-/���B �(-�#&,'*�32#0)1#'6���7���B 13/$'#1#43,)-/*'6�)��"7���B *,(%&,%(#'*�32#0)1#���B 0)(*,'01--('*,(%&,%(#'#1#43,)-/*���(-2-*#$'�&-()/�'�%)$#1)/#*�' �(-2-*#$'*&-(#'6-%,'-0'�.7�'01--$'$3�3�#'(#$%&,)-/'��� ' �.'01--$'$3�3�#'(#$%&,)-/'�'�� ' ¡'01--$'$3�3�#'(#$%&,)-/'�'�. ' ¢'01--$'$3�3�#'(#$%&,)-/'�'�� ' £'01--$'$3�3�#'(#$%&,)-/'¤'�� ' �'/-,'343)1351#'61#34#'513/+7' .'899:;<=>?@�AB	������
���C�D������
��I�
�����
�
������
��I
����������
�
�I��
����������G��
���������
��
���
������
����F
��������������
���E
�����
A�����
�
������
H����C����
����������I�
���
�����������������
��D�����
�������
�
�A�	������
���C�D�������C��
��
�
E������������
�������
����������������F
����D������
���
����G������������
��D��������
����������A��������F
����D�������������
���
��������������GH�����
�I��
���D�D�
��������������F
���H���
�	JKL�IC�
�
�������
I�E
���
���C����I���
����������C��
I������
�D
����
�����������
A��AB	�
���
O���F
����E
��
�K
����������������P���OC
�H�����

�Q�D��������
����� A�A�A�A� AB¥�������
��I
�I
��������CH�������
���
�����O���F
����E
��
�K
����������������P���OC
�H�����

�Q��������MN�����������
�������������������MNH��C��E
��C������AB����O���F
������OC
���������������
���
¦���AB���F
������
���
¦���AB����
�
E������P§�K������E����
�������̈̈�����A���̈����I�̈
�
E����O����̈Q¦������AB��������
����
���
���
����� A�A�A��



�����������	
�����������
���
�������
������������������������������� � � ���������!"#���
����$
������
��%&�  ����'������
�$
��
��
����������� ���( ��)
������(*
���������
 ������������
���*��*�������+��
�����������
� ��)
����
���������$����
,�
 ���
�'�������
 ����
��������+*��
���
���������������
����"��"#-�������
���
(���)
����$
��
�.
 ���������������/���(*
�0��
 ���������
��������
� ��)
�������"��"�"�"'���� �� 
��*�$��
�������������
�������
������ �������+���
�  �����
������*��  �����.�������'���
��-&����.+�
�.
 ������������/..�0����������
������ �
( ��)
����+�
��/���(*
�0���"#�
�
�����..�������(����*���������
�'�����(����*���������
��1���������
+
������� �
��2(3������
�45676895:;<9=>75?:@?86A>7=<8:B4;@C:DEFDGH:;?7?A95:I?JKLFI>8>M?:N?O>K967PL9JP�/Q������'�����0����� ��,, ������"
���"��
�"+��,�������,�����*,��R�,
�+��(��" ����"#.+�
�S�T��+�
�����+�..���� �� 
��*�$��
��2"#-�������
�����(���)
����$
��
�.
 ���������������/���(*
�0��
 ���������
������
�
�+��
����$
'��
 
����
�����������������
� ���( ��)
���$
��
��������
 ������������
������ ���( ��)
����+�
��/���(*
�0"��3"#������
���
��������+�
��
�������� 
��
���
'��
 ������
�$��
'��������
����������*��UVUWXYZ[\YZ[V]\̂UY_Ẁ Wa\bYcYUVUWXYZVbUYZ[V]\̂UY_Ẁ Wa\bUVUWXYZ[\YZ[V]\̂UY_Ẁ Wa\b deff�ghihjhkl jmnonpqrstqpnrnonuvswqxqyusmuwzpon{|s}~��������������~���~����������~�~��������������������~� �������~�~������������������������������������~�~�������������� �# ������������~���~������� ����¡¢¢���~�����������������£¤¥¤�¤¡�¦��# �������������¡¢¢���~��������� ~������§�����~�����§����~���~������� ̈���������¦��# ©�������~���~������������������������¡¢¢���~���������~��¦��# ©�������~���~��������������������������������~��¦����������ª�������«����������� �����������������������¡¢���������~���~�������������������¬¥®� ¡¢�������~���~�������������������¬�̄®� ��������~���~�������������������¬�¢®� °�������~���~�������������������¬��®� ±�������~���~�������������������²��®� ������~�~��~�������~�����~�³�� ¢�µ́µ¶·̧¹º»¼�"#	������
���*�1�������*��
��
�
$������������
�������
������������� ��)
����1������
���
����½�������������������
��1��������
������ ���"����� ��)
����1�������������
���
������ ���'�����
�+ �
���1�1�
����������� ��)
���'���
�	¾.¿�+*�
�
�������
+�$
���
���
���*����+���
����������*��
+������
�1
����
�����������
"��"#%���%&'��$
��*���
���
���
� �
( ��)
������(*
������� ������ 
���
�1���� ���( ��)
������(*
������� ������ 
���
'������1������
����������������
�����
��/À�����ÁÂ���Ã0'��������
�
$�����"���"#������
���
� 
��
���
�������������������
���
+�$
�����+���
����(*
������� ���'��
 ������
�$��
'��������
����������*���
+�$
��S�ÄYÅÆÇÈÇÅÉÊYËÉÅÇÊÇÈÇÌÍYÇÎYËÊÏÏÐÑÊÉÇÎYÑÆÌYÑÆÏÒÌÅÈYÓYÄYÅÆÇÈÇÅÉÊYËÉÅÇÊÇÈÇÌÍYÇÎYËÊÏÏÐYÑÊÉÇÎYÑÏÍÈYÑÆÏÒÌÅÈÄYÅÆÇÈÇÅÉÊYËÉÅÇÊÇÈÇÌÍYÇÎYËÊÏÏÐÑÊÉÇÎYÑÆÌYÑÆÏÒÌÅÈ deff�T��
+�$
��S�deff�



�����������	
�����������
���
�������
������������������������������� � ��������� �!"#"$"%& '()*+,-.+/,)*01+2(-3451+6+78//+8)+7()*9+:;<=>?@AB?CDE>?;FG?H;E>IJ?KDFLMNJ?O?=PHH?PE?=DE>Q?RNDI>ND;� CDE>?;FG?S;E>IJ?KTFLMNJ?O?CPHH?PE?=DE>Q?U;I;?V>WMDN>X>FIH� YZ SINM[IMN>H?H\;]>ED=>̂�YZ =;FGOHIN>;X?>=>_;IDPFH?KCDÙVQ̂�YZ ]N>a]NPL>[I?bccaJ>;N?E=PPG]=;DF?>=>_;IDPFĤ�YZ ]N>a]NPL>[I?bccaJ>;N?_>=P[DIJ?KXPG>=d?DE?;_;D=;<=>Q̂�YZ E=PPGaN>=;I>G?G>;I\?;FG?DFLMNJ?G;I;?EPN?;EE>[I>G?[PMFIJKD>HQ?DF?];HI?J>;NB?\II]HBOOeeefF[G[fFP;;fgP_OHIPNX>_>FIH�hNP]PH>G?S[PNDFg?iMDG>=DF>HB� hNP]PH>G?H[PN>?KPMI?PE?bcQB�=DE>ODFLMNJ?NDHj?]>N[>FI;g>?klcm? bc?=DE>ODFLMNJ?NDHj?]>N[>FI;g>?kncm? o?=DE>ODFLMNJ?NDHj?]>N[>FI;g>?kpcm? q?=DE>ODFLMNJ?NDHj?]>N[>FI;g>?k@cm? n?=DE>ODFLMNJ?NDHj?]>N[>FI;g>?r@cm? @?FPI?;_;D=;<=>?K=>;_>?<=;FjQ? c?sttuvwxyz{�|Z	������
���}������
�������
���������������~�����
�
������������������������
������}������|�	�
�������������
�������������
����
�������
������������������
��������������
������������
����������������~�����������
�����������
����
���������
����
�������|��������
���
����������}�
���������
�����������������~�~�
�����������|��|Z������
���
���
���������������������
��
��
��������
������
��
��������
�����}�����
�������������|Z��
��
��������
�������
���
��
�
���}���
����������������
���
���
��
��
��������
��������������
������������~�~�
���������������
�������~��������
�����
���
�������������������~�~�
���������������
���|���|Z��
��
��������
�����}�����
������
����������
���
���������������
|�������
�����������������
���������
�
�����
����
�������
�����������
����������������
���
��
���|
|��������
�����}������������
������
�����	
���|���|Z	�
��
����������������
�������
�����������
������
�����}��������
��}����������
|�	�
�����������
�������
���
��~�
�����
����
��
�������������
������
�������������
��:;<=>?pcB?U><NDH?E;[IPN?=PPjM]?I;<=>?�
���������������������
����U>]I\H? h;HIMN>?O?̀N;<=>? �PPG=;FG? �N<;F?������|� ���������|����� �� �� ���|� ������|� ����|��������| ���� �� �| � ���
�������|� ����| �����������
�����}���������|�������� �| � �� ���|Z��
���������������������
������Df� Ǹ>;?�;�;NG?V;IDFg?�?G>]I\K_>=P[DIJ�cflQ?�?G><NDH?E;[IPN?������
�����	��
��|������
�������������������
�
��
���������������
�����
��������
����������
������������
�������������������



�����������	
�����������
���
�������
������������������������������� � ������� ����!"������
���
�#�
�$���
������%������&�������
���'�
�������
���

��������
�������������(���
���
�
��
�����������)�������%��
'(������
�����
*�
$
���'
��������
��
!����������
�
�$����
���������
���
�)

���+�!�	�
����,������
��
��)����$��
��
���'�
��$��
�����
���$����
!�	�
�$���
������%������������
���'����
���$����
(�������
�����!"�-./012345/.06747891:0875;1<1=>5?/81@1A4>>B1C0.575;1@15083./1>A10./0D�E064/1FGH1-./01I345/.067478914>>J3K18064/1��
�L���
������%����,������
��M�N0.0O/8/.1 P>C1.7?J10./011QR>./1<1G1 S/B73O1.7?J10./01QR>./1<1T1 U7;V1.7?J10./01QR>./1<1F1W�

��������
�� X��
�����������������$
�%�������Y'�%������Z� X��
�����������������������Y������������Z� ��������������[���
�����
� \����+����%����'
���� 	%������
���
������
(���''
����������������������
���
��� ]�����)�(�'����
���'
�(����%�����(���,�(������
�����%�������)����������
�������)�������%��
'�������
���������������
������
�������������� ������)�������%��
'�������
�������'
������
��������
������
�������������� [��������)�������%��
'���
�$���
������%�̂���'��������
������_��

��������
�̀(�_����
�����
̀����_������)�����̀��!"\������%���
�#��
�ab��������&��%���
�#��
�L���
������%������&�������$
����������
*��c��%����,��
��
���
!���!"d����
����c
����
�����������%���������������
���*�����c��%����
���%���������(�'������%���
����
*��c��%����,��
��
���
��%��!�!�d����
��
���
�������$
��������
������
���%���������(�'������%���
����
*��c��%����,��
��
���
��%��!��!"�
�������
�$��
��������
����������%!�efgfhfij klmnopqrsstupvnwnxympE064/1FTH1z08/.1?3KK4916/5/A781{.78/.70� z08/.1Q3KK4916/5/A781|0801:/}37./O/58?� ~" z08/.1Q3KK4916/5/A78?18>101?K/R7A7R15//B17B/587A7/B17518V/1O>?81./R/584910KK.>I/B1?808/1>.1./;7>5041C08/.1K405�N.>K>?/B1QR>.75;1�37B/475/?H� N.>K>?/B1?R>./1=>381>A1G�DH��5I>4I/?1B7./R849175R./0?75;1C08/.1?3KK491CV7RV1./}37./?16>8V10I0740674789175R./0?/105B1B7./R8491R>55/R875;1?3KK4918>13?/.�1 G�1|7./R84916/5/A78?1�C08/.10I0740674789��163815>1C08/.13?/.1B7./R84916/5/A78?1=/�;�169175�/R875;1758>10}37A/.�1R./0875;15/C1.0C1C08/.1?8>.0;/D1 �1�5B7./R84916/5/A78?1�C08/.10I07406747891=/�;��1./RV0.;/?10}37A/.?18V.>3;V15083.04175A748.087>5D1 �1�>17OK0R81>51C08/.1?3KK491 �15>810I074064/1=4/0I/16405JD1 �1��M���
�����	��
��!������
�������������������
�
��
���������������
(����
��������
�L��������
����,�������
����'���������(����



�����������	
�����������
���
�������
������������������������������� � ��������� �!""#$%&'()�*+�����,
��-��.�
��/����0���1���
���2�����
����3��
�������
�����
�����,
���4
��������������
�
������,
���4�*�*+5������,
���������
���.�
��/����0�6
�
���7��
�������
����,
�����
������2�
�������0��
�
�������3��
�7��������
����������0*��*+	�
�
���1�
�����
������
������������
��2��������,
��-��.�
��/����0��
�
������1���
����1�����
� ��
��
��������
�
�������
�
���1�
����������,
�������*��*+���,
����1�����
�
�
��
���
���
������2�
�������0��

�����2�
����
�������8�9������
�1�����
�
���0�����3
�����
�����
������2�
�����*��:;<;=;>? @ABCDEFGHEIJKDLCECMNFFOPQRSTUUVTWXYZPRT[\R]ŜPQZRZ_̀TTâZ_ŜZP� WXYZPRT[\R]ŜPQZRZ_̀TTbP_PTcSd\ẐSeS]_f� g+ WhiTjiWTWkPlSmZRSTm̂XeTabaTnXo]RXPnp�g+ q̂XrSY_TfkPlSmZRS�q̂XlXfSnTWYX̂Z]sTj\ZnSRZ]SfV� q̂XlXfSnTfYX̂STtX\_TXmTuvwV�WhiTQS_oSS]Tvxyz{uxvvTtkZskT[\R]ŜPQZRZ_̀wT uvTWhiTQS_oSS]Tvxz{vxyzTteXnŜP_ST_XTkZskT[\R]ŜPQZRZ_̀wT yTWhiTQS_oSS]Tvx|z{vxzTtRXoT_XTeXnŜP_ST[\R]ŜPQZRZ_̀wT }TWhiTQS_oSS]Tvxvu{vx|zTtRXoT[\R]ŜPQZRZ_̀wT uT]X_TP[PZRPQRSTtRSP[STQRP]~wT vT!""#$%&'()�*+4�2�������
������/�5����
���
�����	
��7�3����
������
���������������4�����*�	�
����
���
���������/�5������1���������
��������
�����3������
��������������	
��*��*+�3
��0���
����,
������
���
�2������
�/�5����
���
*�	�
�/�5�����
����
��������������
����
�������
��5/���
����������
1
��*�	������
������3��
���
�2

��������7�2��������������
�8����
������9��
���������
�
��3���
������0*��*+5����
����,
������
���
����
��
����1������
��
����������7��
�
�1��
���
�/�5�����������������������
���
��
��2
����
��3
��
�/�57��
�������
�3��
�������
����,
��7��������
����������0*�:;<;=;<? �DMHKJ�LD�J�F�AEHMCAI�FFOPQRSTU}VT�P_\̂S{QPfSnTfXR\_ZX]fTTâZ_ŜZPT �P_\̂S{QPfSnTWXR\_ZX]fTTbP_PTcSd\ẐSeS]_fT g+ qŜYS]_PsSTXmTl̂XrSY_TQPfSnTX]T]P_\̂S{QPfSnTfXR\_ZX]fTQ̀TYXf_Tl̂X[ZnSnTZ]TsS]ŜPRTl̂XrSY_TnP_P�q̂XlXfSnTWYX̂Z]sTj\ZnSRZ]SfVT q̂XlXfSnTfYX̂STtX\_TXmTuvwVT�yz�TXmT_kSTl̂XrSY_TYXf_TZfT]P_\̂S{QPfSn� uv��Tzv�TXmT_kSTl̂XrSY_TYXf_TZfT]P_\̂S{QPfSnT yT�|z�TXmT_kSTl̂XrSY_TYXf_TZfT]P_\̂S{QPfSnT }T�|z�TXmT_kSTl̂XrSY_TYXf_TZfT]P_\̂S{QPfSnT uT]X_TP[PZRPQRSTtRSP[STQRP]~wT vT



�����������	
�����������
���
�������
������������������������������� � � �����!���"##$%&'()**�+,	�
�������-�����.
���
�������/�����
�
�0������-��� 
��
��������
� ��1
����������
���
�+�������0�����
��������
��������
���  �����������
�
����
��
�������� ��.��
�1������������������
�����������
����
�
�0������+��+,	������
���/������
�������
� �� ������������
� ��1
���������������
2��
����������+�	�
� �� �����������
���
�����������
�0��-�
�
�/� 
��
���
������
� ��1
����
��������
2��
�����
���0�
���/���.��������
�����������
�����
2��
��� 
���������
� ��1
����/���
������ ��1
��������+���0 �
���������
2��
������������������
���
���
������3���

��
0��40
���5�������0����.
�3�-
�����5������ �4�3��
���������+�+,6�������
��
 ���
��7���
���
��������������
� 
��
���
����������� ��.��
�������
��
�
������1
���8�3��
 ������
�.��
����������
�����
����������/+�9:;:<:=>?@ABCDEBFGHFIFJDCGGKLMNOPQRSPTUNVWXNOPMOYOZWVPP[\WVO\WL� TUNVWXNOP]OYOZWVPL̂VLP_ÒUW\OaOYVb� c, _OXd\VOePMOYOZWVbPWYPX\dfOgVPeObg\WXVWdY�h\dXdbOePigd\WYjPkUWeONWYObS� h\dXdbOePbgd\OPldUVPdZPmnoS�h\dfOgVPeONWpO\bPMOYOZWVbPWYPZdU\Pd\Pad\OPqWeO\PMOYOZWVPgLVOjd\WObP mnPh\dfOgVPeONWpO\bPMOYOZWVbPWYPVr\OOPqWeO\PMOYOZWVPgLVOjd\WObP sPh\dfOgVPeONWpO\bPMOYOZWVbPWYPVqdPqWeO\PMOYOZWVPgLVOjd\WObP tPh\dfOgVPeONWpO\bPMOYOZWVbPWYPdYNuPdYOPqWeO\PMOYOZWVPgLVOjd\uP mPh\dfOgVPedObPYdVPeONWpO\PLYuPqWeO\PMOYOZWVbP nPYdVPLpLWNLMNOPlNOLpOPMNLYvoP nP"##$%&'()**�+,	�
�������������������
���/������
�������
���0�
���������
�
���-��
���
�
������
����
��-���������
��
��.
�
���/���
� ��1
���������
�������
� ��1
����
���� ����+���+,	�
�-��
���
�
������
����
��0/�������
��+,�
��
������
�
�����������������3� �4�3����� �������
���+��+,�������������
�
��������������
��� �
�
�.����3������������  ��������
�3�������
���
�
�����������
���/������0��������+��+,	��� ���������
�
�������������0 ��.
������3���4
� ���3��.������3���� �4�����������
�+��+,w��������x����/�������
��
�
��������������00����/��
��
��3���� ����3����
���������
�
����+�
+,y����
����0����0 ����������� ��.�����������
������������/����1�����
����+��+,���1
��z�������/����0

��� 
�����������������/��������
�������
�6+w+�7������w���������������
�6+7+�w�������
�8
.
�� 0
��������{��� ��||���+��+��.|}��+,���1
����
����
��
����������������
����� ��1
������ ���
�����-�������������2�
�0��
�.��
����
�{�+
+3�~�!2/
��}��������
����
��-��������
�
���
����
��
+��+,�
 ������
�.��
�{!2��}��������
����������/+�



�����������	
�����������
���
�������
������������������������������� � �������� ��!"#"$"%%&'()*+,-./01+/213+-/,)/+/4)1156789:;<=:>?9@6ABCDE:6DF:G6BDA9D6DH9::I@BA9@B6� >?9@6ABCDE:6DF:J6BDA9D6DH9::K6A6:L9MNB@9G9DAE� OP >QJ:D99FER6DDN68:HCEAE:?@CSBF9F:BD:T@CU9HA:F9EH@B?ABCD�T@C?CE9F:VHC@BDW:XNBF98BD9E=� T@C?CE9F:EHC@9:YCNA:CZ:[\]=�T@CU9HA:̂B88:DCA:@9MNB@9:6D_:CDWCBDW:C?9@6ABCD:6DF:G6BDA9D6DH9:Y8Ĉ ]̀: [\:T@CU9HA:@9MNB@9E:@9WN86@a:CDWCBDW:C?9@6ABCD:6DF:G6BDA9D6DH9̀:6DFRC@:>QJ:@9MNB@9G9DAE:6@9:̂988:F9ZBD9F:YL9WN86@]̀: b:T@CU9HA:̂B88:@9MNB@9:CDWCBDW:C?9@6ABCD:6DF:G6BDA9D6DH9:CNAEBF9:CZ:Ac9:Ĉ D9@dE:@9WN86@:G6BDA9D6DH9:?@6HABH9È:8CDWeA9@G:>QJ:@9MNB@9G9DAE:6@9:NDF9ZBD9F̀:6DFRC@:cBWc:6DDN68:>QJ:HCEA:f:[g:CZ:?@CU9HA:YcBWc]̀: h:T@CU9HA:̂B88:@9MNB@9:9iA9DEBS9:6DFRC@:E?9HB68BEA:C?9@6ABCDE:6DF:G6BDA9D6DH9:CNAEBF9:CZ:Ĉ D9@dE:@9WN86@:G6BDA9D6DH9:?@6HABH9È:?@CU9HA:>QJ:D99FE:6@9:NDH9@A6BD̀:6DFRC@:cBWc:6DDN68:>QJ:HCEA:f:jg:CZ:?@CU9HA:Y9iA9DEBS9]̀: [:DCA:6S6B86789:Y896S9:786Dk]: \:lmmnopqrstt�uP	������
���v������
�������
��
����
��
��
��
���
w
�����xyz�
������������
����{
���������������
��|�
��}���v~������v~���w
����������v~�
��u�~��|�
����
��
��
��
�������������������
��
~��������w
�����������������������xyz������������
���������{
�������u���
���v�������������������������
�����v��
���������xyz��
����
�
���u��uPxyz��
w
����������������������������
�������
�������
����{
����
��������������
�
������{
�����u��uP�
�������
�w��
�}��|~��
����~�����~����
��
���w
�~��������
����������vu�!"#"$"%�&�23-/-0,*+,-�)�1*)���+,.*��1+/21.,�)*1-3(�)3)/,+,-./1.�0,+4�)0�2-��-4��,�156789:;b=:�FGBDBEA@6ABS9a:@9WN86AC@_a:6DF:CAc9@:BG?89G9DA6ABCD:C7EA6H89ERFBZZBHN8A_::I@BA9@B6� �FGBDBEA@6ABS9a:L9WN86AC@_:6DF:CAc9@:BG?89G9DA6ABCD:C7EA6H89ERFBZZBHN8A_:K6A6:L9MNB@9G9DAE� OP �DABHB?6A9F:?@CU9HA:@9MNB@9G9DAÈ:�FGBDBEA@6ABS9a:L9WN86AC@_a:6DF:CAc9@:BG?89G9DA6ABCD:C7EA6H89ERFBZZBHN8A_�T@C?CE9F:VHC@BDW:XNBF98BD9E=� T@C?CE9F:EHC@9:YCNA:CZ:[\]=�T@CU9HA:c6E:Z9̂:6FGBDBEA@6ABS9a:@9WN86AC@_:6DF:BG?89G9DA6ABCD:8BGBA6ABCDE:R:@9MNB@9G9DAE: [\:T@CU9HA:c6E:6:A_?BH68:DNG79@:CZ:6FGBDBEA@6ABS9a:@9WN86AC@_:6DF:8BGBA6ABCDE:R:@9MNB@9G9DAE: <:T@CU9HA:c6E:6:cBWc:DNG79@:CZ:6FGBDBEA@6ABS9a:@9WN86AC@_:6DF:8BGBA6ABCDE:R:@9MNB@9G9DAE: �:DCA:6S6B86789:Y896S9:786Dk]: \:



�����������	
�����������
���
�������
������������������������������� � � �����!���"##$%&'()**�+,	�
�������������������
���-������
�������
��
 ���
������� �
����.�
������.��������/
0��
������-0����
�/����.
�����
1���
.
����� ��2
���.�������
/
��������
�������
� ��2
����
���� ����+���+,3���� ��2
����4���������������
�5�- ���6���
���-����
���� 
������
��
 ������7�����
480��������������
���������
1���
.
����7��������8��
�����.
��
�������
��
���� ����+��+,��9����:
������������+,�
4�� ��2
����
1���
��������
�������� 
�.����7�+
+0����-0������-8��+,	- ����� ��2
����
1���
�������.��
������ 
�.����7�+
+0����-0������-80������������
/�
4���-����
�7�+
+0�	��;80���<���������
��� �� 
��-��1���������+��+,=����� ��2
����
1���
�������.��
������ 
�.���0����
��
/�
4��7�+
+0�	��;80��
�
����
�.����7>?���0�>?�@?0�
��+80���<��������.��
� �� 
��-��1���������+��+,�
 ������
�/��
�7�
40��- ���0�����8��������
����������-+�ABCBDBEAFGHIJKLHMNHOPQRSNHNTJORRUVWXYZ[\]Ẑ_̀abc_dY_eVXZWY_YfaeZZgbaeYbaV� _̂̀abc_dY_eVXZhY_YfaeZiVeVZjYklabYdY_em� n, _̂̀abc_dY_eVXZWY_YfaemZcfZobcpYqerZa_qXlsYsZa_ZobcpYqeZsYmqbaoeac_�tbcocmYsZuqcba_vZwlasYXa_Ym]� tbcocmYsZmqcbYZxcleZcfZyz{]�tbcpYqeZ|aXXZsYXàYbZVZ}av}ZXỲYXZcfZY_̀abc_dY_eVXZWY_YfaemZxWY_YfaemZa_Z~�ZqVeYvcbaYm{Z yzZtbcpYqeZ|aXXZsYXàYbZVZdcsYbVeYZXỲYXZcfZY_̀abc_dY_eVXZWY_YfaemZxWY_YfaemZa_Z��[ZqVeYvcbaYm{Z �ZtbcpYqeZ|aXXZsYXàYbZVZXc|ZXỲYXZcfZY_̀abc_dY_eVXZWY_YfaemZxWY_YfaemZa_Zc_X�ZyZqVeYvcb�{Z [ZtbcpYqeZscYmZ_ceZobc̀asYZV_�ZY_̀abc_dY_eVXZWY_YfaemZ zZ_ceZV̀VaXVWXYZxXYV̀YZWXV_�{Z zZ"##$%&'()**�+,	�
�������������������
���-������
�������
��
/
�����
�/����.
�����
�
��������� ��2
����������� �
����� ��/��
�4�����.�����
�����.
��
�������
�����
�� ��2
����
���� ����+��+,���
�/����.
�����
�
��������
���
�������. ��/
.
��������
�����
���
�/����.
��������������7��
����������� ����������
� ��2
��8+���+,	�
� ��
�����
�/����.
�����
�
������
����
��������
��+,4�
��1����-�7�+
+0� ��2
���������
4�4�
��1����-� ���0�/
�
��
������
������ �0��������
�7�80�����������
/
���
���������
���
�����9����4��
4�
���/
����4�������������.�
/
���8���+,���������
����
�7�+
+0� ��2
����
.�/
���	
���=�����������..�������7	=�8���
�����
�����
�4�������1����
�����.������ ���8���+,�����0������/
����-����
�����-�7�+
+0� ��2
��� ��/��
�������� ���
�����0���
�
�����
�����������0�4
������
�0����4������
����������8���+,���1����-�7�+
+0� ��2
�����
�
��� 
��� �
0��
��
������
�0���� �9���������
����

���<���/
�
������ ���������������
����������
���������������
����1�
��4���� ����������.���.��
����1����-��. ���8��
+,�������
�����
��7�+
+0� ��2
���������
�� ���
������.
���
�������������
�����
�0���
�
�������0��������������.���
�0�4
�����0����4�������8��



�����������	
�����������
���
�������
������������������������������� � �������� !��"#������������
�����
�$����
���
��%�"
"&����������������
���
���
'�(
�����'�������������������)*+,��"#�����-����*&�
�����������
��'
�������%�"
"&����.
������(��
���
���
��(
������
�&���$������
'��'�����,����.
�������
�
���������'��
�$������
�������������������
�
�������������+�/"#�
�������
�(��
��������
����������*"�012131456789:;<8=>8?@AB:=C@D?BBEFGHIJKLMJNOPQRSOTIOUFHJQTVFWUJJ� NOPQRSOTIOUFHJXTVFWUJJYFUFJZI[\QRITIOU]� #̂ NOPQRSOTIOUFHJQTVFWU]JS_JVRS̀IWUaJQOWH\bIbJQOJVRS̀IWUJbI]WRQVUQSO�cRSVS]IbJdWSRQOeJf\QbIHQOI]M� cRSVS]IbJ]WSRIJgS\UJS_JhijM�cRS̀IWUJkF]JOSJFbPIR]IJIOPQRSOTIOUFHJQTVFWU]J hiJcRS̀IWUJlQHHJkFPIJFbPIR]IJIOPQRSOTIOUFHJQTVFWU]JQOJhJIOPQRSOTIOUFHJWFUIeSRmJ nJcRS̀IWUJlQHHJkFPIJFbPIR]IJIOPQRSOTIOUFHJQTVFWU]JQOJopKJIOPQRSOTIOUFHJWFUIeSRQI]J KJcRS̀IWUJlQHHJkFPIJFbPIR]IJIOPQRSOTIOUFHJQTVFWU]JQOJqrJWFUIeSRQI]J iJOSUJFPFQHFGHIJgHIFPIJGHFOsjJ iJtuuvwxyz{||�"#	�
�������������������
���*������
�������
��������
���
(
�����
�(����'
�����'�����)�����'�����
�����'
��
�������
�����
�����.
����
���������"��"#����(
��
�
�(����'
�����'��������
���
������
���(
�����
���'��
�������
�����
���
�(����'
��������������%��
����������������������
����.
��+&���
����������
�'�������������

���'��
'
��
�"� "#��(����'
�����
���'������
����
��������
��"#}'��������)�
��-����*�%�"
"&����.
���������
��)��~�����)�
���
����
�����
���*�	��������
���
��������������������������'���
�������
�������
�
����
�,�����
�
��(
������
�,�����
�
�������
�)�
�������������������&�����
-���
���
�����������)��
)�
���������
�������
�����(
��
+,��"#}'�����������������
����
�%�"
"&����.
���)��~�������
������
��)����	
���������������''���������
�����
�����-����
�+,��"#}'�������������&������(
����*����
�����*�%�"
"&�������
��)��~�����
�)����
����
�
�&�����
��
�&�����
�����(
���
��
�+,��"#}'�����������-����*�%�"
"&����.
����
-���
����

���$������
��(
�
�������
'�(�,��
�������������

�����
�,�����
�
�������������������������������������$�����
�����+,�
"#}'���������������
�����
��%�"
"&����.
����'������
�����
���������������
�����
��
�&����)
����+,��"#}'��������������������
�����
�$����
���
��%�"
"&����������������
���
���-���
�������
�
�������������
���'���(
'
���+,��"#}'�������������$
�����������
��'
�������%�"
"&�����
�
��(
������
���������'��
���
-�
���
(
�������������
���*
������'+�/"#�
�������
��'�����
(
���������
����������*"�



�����������	
�����������
���
�������
������������������������������� � � �����!���"#$#%#&'()*+,-,./001234567896:;3<4<=>66?2=26@5AB<C5D5E=F6 GH IC;J5K=6LM2N5O<456GH 1P?Q16RBEK=<;E246S42FF<O<K2=<;E6LM2N5O<456GH NC5TNC;J5K=6U88T>52C6O4;;VN42<E6FM2N5O<456W<=M6545X2=<;EFY6GH N;F=TNC;J5K=6U88T>52C6O4;;VN42<E6FM2N5O<456W<=M6545X2=<;EFY6IC;N;F5V6LK;C<EZ6[B<V54<E5F96 IC;N;F5V6FK;C56\;B=6;O6U8]96IC;J5K=6W<446NC;=5K=6D2J;C62EV6D<E;C62KK5FF6C;B=5F6<E6O4;;VN42<E62EV65D5CZ5EK>6F5CX<K562KK5FF6=;6̂:L_6N;4<K56F=2=<;EF_62EV6O<C56F=2=<;EF̀6a44;WF65D5CZ5EK>6F5CX<K5F62KK5FF6=;6=M5<C65E=<C562VD<E<F=C2=<X562C52̀6 U86IC;J5K=6W<446NC;=5K=62446D2J;C62KK5FF6C;B=5F6<E6O4;;VN42<E62EV624465D5CZ5EK>6F5CX<K562KK5FF̀6:<E;C62KK5FF6C;B=5F62C56F=<446O4;;V5V6;C6M2X56C5F=C<K=5V62KK5FF6<E64;K2462C52F̀6 b6IC;J5K=6W<446NC;=5K=6F;D56D2J;C62KK5FF6C;B=5F6<E6O4;;VN42<E62EV6=M56D2J;C<=>6\cd8e]6;O65D5CZ5EK>6F5CX<K562KK5FF̀6L;D56D2J;C62EV6D2E>6D<E;C62KK5FF6C;B=5F6W<446C5D2<E6O4;;V5V_62EV65D5CZ5EK>6F5CX<K5F62KK5FF6D2>6356C5F=C<K=5V6<E6F;D562C52F6\<̀5̀6cd8e6;O6O4;;VN42<E63>62C526<E2KK5FF<345]̀6 76IC;J5K=6NC;X<V5F6E;6KM2EZ56=;6D2J;C_6D<E;C_6;C65D5CZ5EK>62KK5FF6C;B=5F6<E6=M56NC;J5K=62C52̀6 86E;=62X2<423456\452X56342Ef]6 86ghhijklmnoo�pH	�
�������������������
���q������
������r ��s
��r������q��������������
s
���t�u���� ��������
r ��������
r
��
��q��
�s��
���
������rv�����
�������
�p��pHws
��q���
����v
����� 
���
�u������
� �
x���� ���x ��v
����!!xq
������� ������ 
���
�t�������u����������
�	�yw	������������������������z� 
���
����� �{{���x�����p� 
���p�����p��r{���
��{�����x���������x��������������pH���uq����������������
�������
�������
�	�yw	��� 
���
�s����
�|��}y�z�~��pH�v�����
�������
����v�������
����t������� �����
���t����
����
��pH��������
�������
�������������
����t����������
�����pH�
 ������
� ��v
���s��
�������
�������
t�r�������
��� ���
�����t�rv�����
��� ���
�����t����rv��{
r
��
��q���
��� ���
��������������
����������qp�� �



 
 

Task 4B – Identification and Evaluation of Potential Flood Management Evaluations and 
Potentially Feasible Flood Management Strategies and Flood Mitigation Projects 

 
 
TWDB requirements for Task 4B state that each RFPG is to develop and receive public comment on a 
“…proposed process to be used by the RFPG to identify and select flood management evaluations,  
flood mitigation strategies, and flood mitigation projects”.  This process, once adopted by the RFPG, is to 
be documented and such documentation is to be included in the Technical Memorandum, the Initial 
Draft Regional Flood Plan, and the adopted Regional Flood Plan. 
 
The following describes the proposed process being considered by the RFPG and on which public 
comment will be taken, both during the December RFPG meeting and via written comments submitted 
through the RFPG’s website.  The process, as described below, was designed to conform with TWDB 
requirements as expressed in the rules, the scope-of-work for the regional flood planning process, and 
technical guidelines. 
 
Step 1: Conduct an initial screening of Projects, Evaluations, and Strategies that were received by or 
developed in conjunction with floodplain management communities/project sponsors: 

In this first step, screening is conducted based on minimum TWDB requirements. The screening criteria 
applied in this step are:  

• The evaluation/strategy/project is related to a flood mitigation or floodplain management goal. 
• The evaluation /strategy/project meets an emergency need. 
• The evaluation /strategy/project addresses a flood problem with drainage area of 1 square mile 

or greater.  
• The evaluation /strategy/project reduces flood risk for the 100-year (1% annual chance) flood. 
• Exceptions for level of flood risk reduction or problem area size include instances of flooding of 

critical facilities, transportation routes, or other factors as determined by the RFPG. 

Step 2-1: Screening of Projects (FMPs): 

In the second step, potential Flood Mitigation Projects 

(FMPs) are subjected to a screening-level evaluation based on the TWDB Technical Guidelines for 
Regional Flood Planning (April 2021) and specifically Figure 5 FMP flowchart (Attachment A). If a 
potential FMP does not satisfy the screening criteria in this step, it will then become a potential Flood 
Management Evaluation. There are three criteria that are applied in this step are: “sufficient data”, “no 
negative effect”, and “project details”. 

• Sufficient data - The data upon which an assessment of no negative effect has been made must 
be reliable and have minimal uncertainty. H&H modeling, mapping, and basis for mitigation 
analysis must generally meet Section 3.5 of TWDB technical guidelines. 

• No negative effect - The potential Project must not have negative impact on the 100-year (1% 
annual chance) flood event. It must not raise the flood elevation or increase discharge of the 



100-year flood event. Any of the following will disqualify the potential project in this screening 
step: 

o Potential project increases inundation on homes or commercial buildings. 
o Potential project increases inundation beyond existing or proposed ROW or easements. 
o Potential project increases inundation beyond existing drainage infrastructure capacity. 

• Project details – Data used to define the potential project must include sufficient project details 
as described in Section 3.9 of TWDB technical guidelines, including but not limited to the 
following: 

o Flood severity level metrics 
o Flood risk/damage reduction metrics 
o Estimated capital and O&M costs 
o Benefit/Cost ratios 
o Environmental benefits/impacts 
o Implementation constraints 
o Water supply benefits 

Step 2-2: Screening of Evaluations (FMEs):  

Flood Management evaluations may fall into one of three general categories: 

1. Potential projects (FMPs) that did not meet screening criteria Step 2-1. 
2. Planned flood studies or flood risk reduction alternatives analyses provided by or developed 

in conjunction with floodplain management communities/project sponsors. 
3. Potential flood studies or flood risk reduction alternatives analysis needs identified by the 

technical consultant in Task 4A. 

In this step potential studies are screened based on the following criteria from TWDB technical 
guidelines and illustrated in the flowchart in Attachment B: 

o Potential evaluation must identify structures, population, and critical facilities at risk within the 
flood problem area being studied. 

o Potential evaluation must identify roadways impacted by flooding within the flood problem area 
being studied, if applicable. 

o Potential evaluation must quantify area of agricultural land at risk within the flood problem area 
being studied, if applicable. 

o Potential evaluation must have willing sponsor(s) identified that are willing to commit resources 
and some level of potential cost sharing. 

o Potential evaluation must have reasonable planning-level cost estimate. 
 

If there is sufficiently detailed H&H analysis and flood mitigation alternatives analysis, then the 
Evaluation may be considered as Project (FMP) or Strategy (FMS) 

Step 2-3: Screening of Strategies (FMSs): 

Strategies are proposed plans or actions that reduce flood risk or mitigate flood hazards to life or 
property. Any proposed action that doesn’t meet the criteria to qualify as an evaluation or as a project 
can potentially be considered as a strategy.  Strategies can also be flood studies or flood risk reduction 



alternatives analysis needs that are identified in Task 4A. In general, RFPG has flexibility with what 
qualifies as Strategies. 

In this step, Strategies are screened based on the following criteria from the TWDB technical guidelines: 

o Potential strategies must include a planning-level cost estimate. 
o Potential strategies must have an identified sponsor(s) that are willing to commit resources and 

some level of potential cost sharing. 
o Potential strategies must quantify the estimated flood risk being addressed and potential level 

of flood risk reduction. 

Step 3: Sorting of Projects, Evaluations and Strategies by Flood Mitigation and Floodplain Management 
Goals: 

In the third step, the projects, evaluations, and strategies identified will be assigned to one of more of 
the goals defined in Task 3B.  

Step 4: Detailed assessment of selected Projects, Evaluations, and Strategies: 

In the fourth step, potential evaluations, strategies, and projects that meet the criteria in the initial 
screening processes described in Steps 1 and 2 are to be evaluated further for potential feasibility and 
must meet the following:   

o Potential projects must have an estimated benefit-cost ratio greater than 1.0. 
o Potential evaluations, strategies, and projects must have a willing sponsor(s) that has been 

verified. 
o There must be no known insurmountable implementation constraints or hurdles, such as ROW 

acquisitions, utility conflicts, and/or permitting issues. 

Step 5: Final recommendation of Projects, Evaluations, and Strategies: 

In this final step recommended studies, strategies, and projects are to be incorporated in the initial draft 
and final regional flood plan.  The regional flood plan must also include: 

o Public comments and RFPG response on the recommended FMPs, FMEs and FMSs 
o Initial and final adoption 

 

 

  



Attachment A 

 

RFP Technical Guidelines Figure 5: FMP Flowchart 



Attachment B 

 


	SARFPG Agenda Packet 12.16.2021
	RFPG Agenda_12.16.2021.pdf
	SARFPG Meeting 12162021.pdf
	�SARFPG Meeting�
	Agenda
	Critical Path Schedule
	Outreach Update
	Task 4A Flood Mitigation Needs Analysis
	Task 4B – Identification and Evaluation of Potential Flood Management Evaluations, Strategies and Projects
	Task 4B – Identification and Evaluation of Potential Flood Management Evaluations, Strategies and Projects�
	Task 4B – Identification and Evaluation of Potential Flood Management Evaluations, Strategies and Projects�
	Task 4B – Identification and Evaluation of Potential Flood Management Evaluations, Strategies and Projects�
	Task 4B – Identification and Evaluation of Potential Flood Management Evaluations, Strategies and Projects�
	Task 4B – Identification and Evaluation of Potential Flood Management Evaluations, Strategies and Projects�
	Slide Number 12

	Section 3.6.pdf
	Section 3.9.pdf
	Task 4B Process_12082021.pdf

	Meeting Minutes_11.16.2021.pdf



